
 

 

BOARD MEETING: Regular Meeting   
DATE:   Wednesday, May 7, 2025 
TIME:   6:00 p.m. 
PLACE:   Naples High School Cafeteria 
 

I. Meeting Called to Order 
II. Roll Call 
III. Adopt the Agenda of the Regular Meeting of May 7, 2025                      (Board Action) 
IV. Pledge of Allegiance 
V. Budget Hearing 
VI. Public Comments:  

  The Board of Education invites you, the residents of our school community, to feel comfortable in sharing 
matters of interest or concern that you might have with us.  The Board President will be happy to recognize 
those of you who wish to speak.  We would ask that you come forward and please identify yourself before 
presenting your thoughts. 
  Those items brought to the attention of the Board during this time may be taken under consideration for 
future response or action. (Individual comments will be limited to three minutes.) 
  As a matter of courtesy, we ask that issues related to specific School District personnel or students be 
brought to the attention of the Superintendent of Schools privately.  Thank you for this consideration.  
 

Board Response: The Board of Education is committed to keeping communication open and transparent.  
The Board of Education President will be working with the Board and the Superintendent to make every 
effort to respond to public comments directed to the Board of Education at previous meetings, during the 
next scheduled meeting. 

VII. Points of Interest  
VIII. Superintendent Reports – Administrative Updates - Presentations 

 Social Studies 7-12 – Matthew Green 
 Student Representative Update 
 Superintendent Update 
• Administrative Updates  
• Assistant Superintendent for Business 

IX. Board Report  
X. Minutes             (Board Action) 
XI. Business             (Board Action)  

 Policy Updates 
 Treasurers Report 
 Physical and Speech Therapy Services Agreement 
 Discards 

XII. Personnel            (Board Action)   
• Appointments 
• 2024-2025 Extra-Curricular Appointment 
• Resignation 
• Extended Unpaid Leave 

XIII. Consent Agenda Items           (Board Action)   
 CSE Committee Recommendations 
 Substitutes   
 Volunteers 

XIV. Proposed Executive Session, Subject to Board Approval                                    (Board Action) 
XV.  Adjournment            (Board Action)  



Regular Meeting  May 7, 2025 
 
 

Page 1 of 5 
 
 

Budget Hearing held on May 7, 2025 at 6:00 pm in the Naples High School Cafeteria. 
 
Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Education of Naples Central School held on 
Wednesday, May 7, 2025 scheduled at 6:30 p.m. in the Naples High School Cafeteria. 
 

Roll Call  Members Present: Robert Brautigam Steve Mark  
     Jacob Hall  Gail Musnicki 
     Amie Levine  Angela Rischpater 
     Kelley Louthan Maura Sullivan 
      

Members Absent:   Joseph Callaghan 
 

Also Present: Kevin Swartz, Chad Hunt, Nicole Green, Christina Brautigam and Michele Barkley 
 

Guests Present: Matthew Green, Ruth Brott, Mona Cardinale, Diann Payne 
 
A quorum being present, the Regular Meeting of May 7, 2025 was called to order at 6:57 p.m. by 
Board President Jacob Hall. 
 
Motion:   Steve Mark      
2nd:      Kelley Louthan  
Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the agenda of the Regular Meeting of  
May 7, 2025 as presented. 
 

Voting Yes: 8   Motion Carried 
Voting No: 0    
 
Joseph Callaghan arrived at 6:59 pm 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
The Pledge was spoken before a quorum being present at approximately 6:55 pm. 
 
Public Comments – Boards Response - None 
 
Points of Interest 
Board President thanked the Budget Committee, Chad and the District Office for putting together 
the Budget Hearing and working on the budget. He appreciates the work that is put into it knowing 
the challenges of putting together a budget contingent on the NYS Budget.  
Board President noted also that NYSSBA has been putting out information on Federal Guidelines 
and find it interesting. 
 
Superintendent Reports – Administrative Reports - Presentations 
 

Social Studies Department 
Department Chair, Matthew Green presented information currently happening in the Social 
Studies Department. This included information regarding team members and the Elective Upgrade 
of the Business Law course to align with Portrait of a Graduate. He noted that a Financial Literacy 



Regular Meeting  May 7, 2025 
 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 
 

course would begin in the fall of 2025. He also spoke about the Seal of Civic Readiness along with 
changes for the next school year and the future work of skills alignment, revision of curriculum 
maps – Portrait of a Graduate and a possible development of a Military History Elective.  
 

Superintendent Update 
Superintendent Kevin Swartz provide a couple of updates. He recently sent out an email/survey to 
the current juniors (Class of 2026) about Student Board Rep interest for future years. He also hopes 
to get into some classes to discuss the opportunity with students with Mrs. Green.  
Mr. Swartz also shared that it was great to see the kids proud of their decisions on Decision day. 
The pictures out front, breakfast and to see that they had pride about their decisions and had passion 
to talk about it.  There was a respect among all the kids no matter what pathway they have chosen 
after graduation.  
Mr. Swartz stated that he had a great meeting with the administrators and Matt Mahoney regarding 
summer work.  Matt Mahoney will be speaking in June with more detail about the summer work. 
Mr. Swartz also made note that Governor Hochul has said that her cell phone legislation will be 
coming forth, but we still don’t know what is in the legislation. Therefore, we are still in a holding 
pattern.  
 

Jr./Sr. High School Principal 
Mrs. Nicole Green noted how quickly time is going by as we gear up for the end of year 
celebrations. It’s wonderful to be in the building to see the kids and the class of 2025 and connect 
with them in the hallways. It’s easy to get caught up in the day to day but slowing down to 
appreciate all the interactions you have. She also noted that at this time of year there is testing: 
NYS 3-8, AP Testing, and Regents. The 3E Day was absolutely fantastic. It’s important to hold 
on to those moments and celebrate.  
 
Board Report – Facilities Committee 
An update was provided by Board Member Robert Brautigam regarding the Capital Project Phase 
2 punch list and Phase 3 update for the NES Nurse’s Office and Tile Completion work. Mr. 
Brautigam also shared information regarding the Building Condition Survey and that SEI provided 
a general overview of the findings and recommendations. 
 
Motion:   Gail Musnicki 
2nd:           Joseph Callaghan 
Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the minutes of the following meeting(s): 

 Regular Meeting of April 23, 2025 

 

Voting Yes: 9   Motion Carried 
Voting No: 0 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Regular Meeting  May 7, 2025 
 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 
 

Motion:    Steve Mark 
2nd:           Robert Brautigam 
Resolved, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Naples Central School 
District Board of Education approves the following Business resolutions as presented: 
 

 Resolved, that the Board of Education, upon the recommendation of the Policy 
Committee, with no second reading as per Policy #1410,  approves the following policies, 
regulations and forms as presented: 
-    Policy #7540: Suicide  
-    Policy #7552: Bullying: Peer Abuse in the Schools 
-    Policy #7570: Supervision of Students 

 Resolved, that the Board of Education, upon the recommendation of the Policy 
Committee, with no second reading required as per Policy #1410,  approves the removal 
of the following policies as presented: 
-    Policy #7580: Safe Public School Choice 

 Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the Treasurer’s Monthly Report as 
follows: For period ending March 2025. (Attached)  

 Resolved, that Juventas Physical, Occupational, and Speech Therapy Services, PLLC, is 
hereby approved to enter into a, Independent Contractor Agreement for the purpose of 
providing Physical and Speech Therapy services for students enrolled in the Naples 
Central School District effective July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2027. (Agreement 
attached) 

 Resolved, that approval be given for the following to be declared surplus property and 
approval given to discard as per Policy #5250: 

-    Elementary Library Discards 04/01/25 to 04/30/25. List Attached 
-    High School Discard – Large Green and White Table   

 

Discussion: Board member Angela Rischpater requested clarification of Policy #7570 Supervision 
of Students from 2:30 – 3:30. Superintendent Swartz stated that they should be supervised because 
it is part of the contractual day as well as from a liability standpoint. Board member Amie Levine 
stated that she understood that this policy was going to be revisited at the next Policy Meeting.   
 

Jacob Hall tabled the conversation concerning Policy #7570 and be sent back to the Policy 
Committee for review. 
 

He asked for a motion to accept the resolution as amended to remove Policy #7570 from the motion 
as presented. 
 

Motion:    Steve Mark 
2nd:           Robert Brautigam 
Motion as amended to remove Policy #7570 Supervision of Students and send back to the Policy 
Committee for further review. 
 

Discussion: Board Member Maura Sullivan asked for clarification of procedure for policy name 
changes in reference to Policy #7540 Suicide noting that the name of the policy has changed.  
 

Motion:    Steve Mark 
2nd:           Robert Brautigam 



Regular Meeting  May 7, 2025 
 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 
 

Motion to reamend to change resolution to include the new name of policy #7540. 
- Policy #7540: Student Mental Health Awareness (Previously named ‘Suicide’) 

 

Voting Yes: 8   Motion Carried 
Voting No:     0 
Abstain:         1 - Kelley Louthan      
 
Motion:   Gail Musnicki 
2nd:      Angela Rischpater 
Resolved, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Naples Central School 
District Board of Education approves the following personnel item(s) as presented:  
 

 Resolved, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Naples Central School 
District Board of Education approves the following Probationary Appointment, pending a 
successful background fingerprinting clearance report: 
-      Stephanie Fischer, School Bus Driver, effective 04/29/25 at the rate of $21.40/hour 
-      Alice DeMallie, School Nurse, effective 07/01/25 at the rate of $30.70/hour 

 Resolved, that the Board of Education approved the following Extra-Duty Advisor 
appointments for the 2024-2025 School Year, salary as per negotiated agreement, 
contingent upon student enrollment: 
-     Assistant Color Guard – Band: Shaylynn Whipple 

 Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the following resignation, with regret: 
- Donna Fox, Food Service Helper, effective 06/30/25   

 Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the request of Ellen Ellison, Science 
Teacher, for an extended unpaid family leave of absence commencing from the end of her 
paid pregnancy related disability leave through June 16, 2025, with benefits continuing 
throughout her leave as per the Family Medical Leave Act.  

 

Voting Yes: 9   Motion Carried 
Voting No: 0    
 
Motion:      Kelley Louthan     
2nd:       Gail Musnicki 
Resolved, that the Board of Education, upon the recommendation of Superintendent Kevin 
Swartz, approves the Consent Agenda Items as presented: 

 

a. Resolved, that the Board of Education approves committee recommendations from the 
following meeting(s): 

- Committee on Special Education actions of: 04/09/25; 04/11/25; 04/22/25  
- Committee on Pre-School Special Education actions of: None 
- 504 Committee actions of: 04/22/25  

 

b. Resolved, that the Board of Education hereby approves the following Substitute 
appointments, pending a successful background fingerprinting clearance report:  
Name   Position            
Allison McLaughlin Teacher Aide 
Brenda Boylan Teacher  



Regular Meeting  May 7, 2025 
 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 
 

Donna Fox  Food Service Helper  
Tracie Freeland Cleaner  
Lauren Stone  Teacher Aide 
Lauren Stone  School Monitor 
Lauren Stone  Food Service Helper 
Ava Kennedy  Teacher 
 

c.   Resolved, that the Board of Education hereby approves the following Volunteer(s): 
Name   Position            
Amanda Rockcastle Classroom Volunteer for the 2024-2025 School Year    
Anthony Clement Volunteer (Marching Band) Spring 2025 Season     
Lisa Miller  Volunteer (Marching Band) Spring 2025 Season   

                 

Voting Yes: 9   Motion Carried 
Voting No: 0    
 
Motion:    Robert Brautigam 
2nd:       Steve Mark 
Resolved, that the Board of Education approves calling an executive session at 7:45 p.m. as 
presented:  

a) The medical and employment history of a particular person.  
b) The proposed acquisition of real property, but only when publicity would substantially 
     affect the value of these things.   
c)  Discussions regarding proposed, pending or current litigation. 

 

Voting Yes: 9   Motion Carried 
Voting No: 0    
 
Time out of Executive Session: 8:35 p.m. 
 
Motion:      Robert Brautigam     
2nd:        Gail Musnicki 
There being no further business, the Regular Meeting of May 7, 2025 is hereby adjourned at 
8:35  p.m.  
 

Voting Yes:    9   Motion Carried 
Voting No: 0   
 
Dated this 7th  day of May, 2025 
 
 
_______________________ 
Michele Barkley 
District Clerk 
  











 

      POLICY     
 

      POLICY     
20122025 7552 
 1 of 3 
 
Students 

 
 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: BULLYING: PEER ABUSE IN THE SCHOOLS 
 
 The Board of Education is committed to providing a safe and productive learning environment 
within its schools. Bullying of a person by any other person is strictly prohibited on school property, in 
school buildings, on school buses, and at school sponsored events and/or activities whether occurring 
on or off campus. The Board of Education shall require the prohibition of bullying - along with the 
range of possible intervention activities and/or sanctions for such misconduct - to be included in the 
District Code of Conduct for all grade levels.  
 
 For purposes of this policy, the term "bullying" among children is defined, in general, as: "a 
variety of negative acts carried out repeatedly over time. It involves a real or perceived imbalance of 
power, with a more powerful child or group attacking those who are less powerful."  Bullying can take 
three forms: 
 
 a) Physical (including, but not limited to, hitting, kicking, spitting, pushing, taking personal 

belongings); 
 
 b) Verbal (including, but not limited to, taunting, malicious teasing, name calling, making 

threats); and 
 
 c) Psychological (including, but not limited to, spreading rumors; manipulating social 

relationships; or engaging in social exclusion, extortion, or intimidation). 
 
 Although this Policy focuses on the bullying of a student by another student, it should be noted 
that bullying against any individual is strictly prohibited.  This includes bullying of staff members 
against students, students against staff members, staff members against other staff members, and 
bullying by or against any parents, persons in parental relation, volunteers, visitors or vendors who 
may be on school property or at school sponsored events as defined above.  
 
Engages in Cyberbullying Behavior 
 
 As with other forms of bullying, cyberbullying is an attempt to display power and control over 
someone perceived as weaker.  Cyberbullying involving District students may occur both on campus 
and off school grounds and may involve student use of the District Internet system or student use of 
personal digital devices while at school, such as cell phones, digital cameras, and personal computers 
to engage in bullying. 
 
 Cyberbullying includes, but is not limited to, the following misuses of technology: harassing, 
teasing, intimidating, threatening, or terrorizing another student or staff member by way of any 
technological tool, such as sending or posting inappropriate or derogatory e-mail messages, instant 
messages, text messages, digital pictures or images, or Web site postings (including blogs). 
 

(Continued) 



 

      POLICY     
 

      POLICY     
20122025 7552 
 2 of 3 
 
Students 

 
 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: BULLYING: PEER ABUSE IN THE SCHOOLS (Cont’d) 
 

Cyberbullying has the effect of: 
 

a)    Physically, emotionally or mentally harming a student; 
b) Placing a student in reasonable fear of physical, emotional or mental harm; 
c)    Placing  a student in reasonable fear of damage to or loss of personal property; and 
d) Creating an intimidating or hostile environment that substantially interferes with a 

student’s educational opportunities. 
 

 Also, cyberbullying that occurs off-campus, that causes or threatens to cause a material or 
substantial disruption in the school, could allow school officials to apply the “Tinker standard” where 
a student’s off-campus “speech” may be subject to formal discipline by school officials when it is 
determined that the off-campus speech did cause a substantial disruption or threat thereof within the 
school setting [Tinker v. Des Moines Indep. Sch. Dist. 393 U.S. 503 (1969)].  Such conduct could also 
be subject to appropriate disciplinary action in accordance with the District Code of conduct and 
possible referral to local law enforcement authorities. 
 

Reports of Allegations of Bullying/Cyberbullying Behavior 
 

 Any person who believes that he/she is being subjected to bullying/cyberbullying behavior, as 
well as any other person who has knowledge of or witnesses any possible occurrence of bullying, shall 
report the bullying to any staff member or the Building Principal. The staff member/Building Principal 
to whom the report is made (or the staff member/Building Principal who witnesses bullying behavior) 
shall promptly, thoroughly and equitably investigate the complaint The administration will take all 
reasonable steps to investigate and determine facts related to the reported issue while ensuring 
adherence to SED law regarding student rights. Given the sophistication of social media/technology, 
administration will work to partner with families to prevent cyberbullying as it is recognized that these 
behaviors often occur outside of the school day and take appropriate reasonable action to include, as 
necessary, referral to the next level of supervisory authority and/or other official designated by the 
District to investigate allegations of bullying.  Investigation of allegations of bullying shall follow the 
procedures utilized for complaints of harassment within the School District. Allegations of bullying 
shall be promptly and equitably investigated and will be treated as confidential and private to the 
extent possible within legal constraints.  
 

Prevention and Intervention 
 

 Personnel at all levels are responsible for taking corrective action to prevent bullying behavior of 
which they have been made aware at School District sites or activities and/or reporting such behavior 
to their immediate supervisor. Further, staff training shall be provided to raise awareness of the 
problem of bullying within the schools and to facilitate staff identification of and response to such 
bullying behavior. 
 

 Prevention and intervention techniques within the District to prevent against bullying behavior 



 

      POLICY     
 

      POLICY     

and to support and protect victims shall include building-level and classroom-level strategies and 
activities as determined by administration. Individual intervention will be provided by appropriate 
staff members to bullies, victims and/or parents to help ensure that the bullying stops. 

 

(Continued) 
20122025 7552 
 3 of 3 
 
Students 

 
 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: BULLYING: PEER ABUSE IN THE SCHOOLS (Cont’d) 
 

Rules against bullying shall be publicized District-wide and shall be disseminated as appropriate to 
staff, students and parents. 
 
Prohibition of Retaliatory Behavior (Commonly Known as “Whistle-Blower” Protection) 
 

 The Board prohibits any retaliatory behavior directed against complainants, victims, witnesses, 
and/or any other individuals who participate in the investigation of allegations of 
bullying/cyberbullying. Follow-up inquiries and/or appropriate monitoring of the alleged bully and 
victim shall be made to ensure that bullying/cyberbullying behavior has not resumed and that all those 
involved in the investigation of allegations of bullying have not suffered retaliation. 
 

 
Civil Service Law Section 75-B 
 
 
 
NOTE: Refer also to Policies  #3420 -- Anti-Harassment in the School District 

#7551 -- Sexual Harassment of Students 
#7553 -- Hazing of Students 
District Code of Conduct 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

      POLICY     

 
Adopted:  06/27/07 
Revised:   03/17/10 
Revised:   02/15/12 
Revised:   05/07/25 
 

 
2015 7553 

 
 

Students 
 

 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: HAZING OF STUDENTS 
 

 The Board of Education is committed to providing a safe, productive and positive learning 
environment within its schools.  Hazing activities are demeaning and abusive behaviors that harm 
victims, are inconsistent with the educational goals of the District, and may constitute criminal 
conduct. Consequently, the hazing of a students by other students or groups of students is strictly 
prohibited on school property; in school buildings; on school buses; by school sponsored groups, clubs 
or teams; and at school sponsored events and/or activities whether occurring on or off-campus. Hazing 
is prohibited regardless of the victim’s apparent willingness to participate in the activity.   
 

 For purposes of this policy, the term "hazing" is defined as any humiliating or dangerous activity 
expected of a student to join a group, regardless of their willingness to participate. Acts constituting 
hazing may range in severity from teasing or embarrassing a student to various forms of physical, 
emotional, and/or sexual abuse. Hazing behaviors include, but are not limited to: 
 

 1) Humiliation:  socially offensive, isolating or uncooperative behaviors. 
 

 2) Substance abuse:  abuse of tobacco, alcohol or illegal drugs. 
 

 3) Other dangerous actions:  hurtful, aggressive, destructive, and disruptive behaviors. 
 

 Hazing is a form of harassment and bullying, as those terms are defined for the purposes of 
Policy #7560 – Dignity for All Students, and may constitute discrimination. As such, the District’s 
response to reports of hazing will be governed by applicable law, the District’s Code of Conduct, and 
Policy #7560 and its implementing regulations. In the event allegations involve hazing based on a 
student’s race, color, religion, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, or disability, the District may 
utilize the procedures set forth in Policy #3420 – Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment in the 
School District, and its implementing regulations.    
 
Education Law Sections 1709-a, 2503-a, 2554-a and 2801 
New York State Penal Law Sections 120.16 and 120.17 
8 New York Code of Rules and Regulations (NYCRR) Section 100.2 
 
NOTE:   Refer also to:   Policy #3420 – Anti-Harassment in the School District 
                                       Policy #7551 – Sexual Harassment of Students 
                                       District Code of Conduct 
   



























































 

 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

THIS INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered 
into ______________, 2025, and is effective July 1, 2025 (the“ Effective Date”) by and between 
Juventas Physical, Occupational, and Speech Therapy Services, PLLC, of P.O. Box 1489, 
Corning, New York 14830 (the “Provider”), and Naples Central School District, (“District,”), 
136 North Main Street, Naples, NY, 14512, and herein collectively referred to as  the “Parties” 
and each a “Party”.   
 
WHEREAS, the District is in need of physical and speech therapy services and Provider is 
willing to supply those services to District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties wish to outline their working relationship under this Agreement; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 
 
 Scope of Engagement. 

1. Provider shall provide physical and speech therapy services, both direct and indirect, 
(collectively, the “Services” and more specifically defined herein) for the District at the 
locations requested by the District from time to time.  

 
2. Provider and District shall in good faith mutually determine the dates and times that 

Provider is to provide the Services. 
 

3. Provider shall provide all Services in a competent and professional manner in accordance 
with the standards of professional practice, the policies, procedures, and guidelines of the 
District, and all applicable laws, rules, and regulations. 

 
4. At the District’s expense, the District shall supply Provider with suitable working space 

for rendering services consistent with Section 1(d), above.  The physical space shall be 
appropriate for safe and confidential therapy services. 

 
5. At the District’s expense, the District shall supply Provider with student-specific 

specialized equipment and supplies.  Provider will supply all other general therapy 
equipment and supplies. 

 
 
 Services.   

1. Direct Services include: 
a. Physical and Speech therapy services to students as identified through the 

Committee for Special Education (“CPSE/CSE”) process.  These services include 
evaluation of and treatment and planning for gross motor, speech-language and 
oral-motor dysfunction. 

b.  Provider participation in CPSE/CSE meetings. 
c. Consultation and guidance regarding developmental motor function.  
d. Assistance with special education program planning.  



 

 

e.  Staff development for District employees on gross motor and speech-language 
development and classroom strategies. 

f. Any other activity requiring direct interaction and physical presence of Provider. 
  
2. Indirect Services include: 

a. Recommendations for and implementation of individualized education plan 
(“IEP”) for students receiving direct services. 

b. Regular communication with District staff and student’s parents regarding student 
needs and services, as well as communicating the performance of student through 
progress reports, IEP documentation, phone calls and other media as appropriate.  

c. Maintenance of contemporaneous and accurate documentation of all 
individualized services, including progress monitoring of established goals, 
response to therapeutic interventions, and communication with District staff and 
parents. 

d. Timely and accurate documentation of individualized and group therapy sessions 
necessary for Medicaid reimbursement.   

 
 Professional Qualifications. 
 Provider hereby represents and warrants that all services shall be provided by a physical 
therapist and speech-language pathologist duly licensed to practice in the State of New York for 
the benefit of the District and employed by Provider and who have met the fingerprinting 
requirements of Part 87 of the Commissioner’s Regulations and Education Law 1709 (39) and 
3004-b.   
 
 Term and Termination. 
     This Agreement shall continue for twenty-four (24) months beginning on the Effective Date 
unless terminated in accordance with the following:  

1. Either Party may terminate this Agreement at any time, without cause, effective on thirty 
(30) days’ written notice to the other Party.  

 
2. Either Party may terminate this Agreement immediately by written notice upon any 

breach by the other if such breach is not curable, or, if such breach is curable, it has not 
been cured within the longer of ten (10) school days or such time period as is mutually 
agreed to by the Parties after receiving written notice of such breach.  

 
3. Termination of this Agreement for any reason shall immediately terminate Provider's 

obligations to provide services to the District and terminate the District’s obligation to 
compensate Provider for services, save and except payment for services provided through 
the date of such termination. The Parties' rights, obligations, warranties and 
representations shall survive termination of this Agreement.  

 
4. This Agreement will terminate automatically and immediately upon the death, permanent 

disability or mental incapacity of Provider.  
 
 
 



 

 

 
 Compensation.   

1. Provider shall submit bi-weekly billing statements for services provided.  District shall 
reimburse Provider on a monthly basis for services rendered.  Payment to be received not 
more than 30 days after a bill is submitted by Provider to District.  

 
2. The rate of compensation is $70 per unit of service. 

 
3. One unit of service is 15-30 minutes for each session of direct services, as defined above.  

Individual CSE meetings will be billed as one unit each, up to 30 minutes. 
 

4. Any services rendered that are in addition to the direct and indirect services as defined 
above shall be billed at the rate of $140 per hour.  Provider will bill these additional 
services in 15-minute intervals.  

 
 
 Professional Liability Insurance. 
      Provider shall pay for and maintain in force professional liability insurance coverage insuring 
professional errors, omission, negligence, incompetence, and malfeasance for services provided 
by pursuant to this Agreement with the limits of liability in the amount of $1,000,000 for each 
occurrence, with a per annum aggregate limitation of $3,000,000.  Upon request, Provider shall 
provide the District with written evidence that such coverage is in full force and effect, and upon 
request Provider shall provide the District with a copy of any such policy.  Each such policy shall 
(a) name the District as an additional insured, and (b) expressly provide that such policy shall not 
be terminated, cancelled, or modified absent at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice from 
the insurance company to the District. 
 
 Confidentiality. 
       At all times during the Term of this Agreement, Provider agrees it shall comply with any and 
all local, state, and federal rules, regulations, and laws pertaining to the confidentiality of 
medical, personal, and other information, including without limitation HIPAA.  Provider shall 
treat all matters and information related to the District’s students as confidential information 
belonging solely to the District, to be utilized by Provider solely as instructed by the District. 
 
 
 Relationship of the Parties.  

1. For purposes of this Agreement, Provider is and shall at all times be an independent 
contractor of the District.   

 
2. Provider agrees that, solely by virtue of this Agreement, it shall not, nor shall any person 

providing services hereunder: (i) claim to be an employee of the District; (ii) request or 
claim entitlement to any employee benefit now or hereafter offered by the District to any 
of its employees; (iii) hold itself out to any person or entity as an employee of the 
District; or (iv) execute any agreement, document, or instrument in the name of or 
imposing a legal obligation on the District. 

 



 

 

3. No joint venture, partnership, franchise, employment, or any relationship, other than an 
independent contractor relationship, is created or is intended to be created by this 
Agreement or by any Party’s full or partial performance of this Agreement. 

 
4. Provider, as an independent contractor, acknowledges and agrees that it is solely 

responsible for all taxes, withholdings, and other statutory or contractual obligations of 
any nature, including, but not limited to, workers’ compensation insurance, applicable to 
Provider and any of the Services. 

 
5. Provider shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the District and its employees and 

authorized agents from any and all claims, damages, liability, expenses (including 
without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising with respect to any breach by 
Provider of this Agreement or any provision, warranty, or representation made by 
Provider in this Agreement. 

 
 
 Miscellaneous. 

1. This Agreement shall be subject to and governed by the laws of the State of New York, 
without giving effect to provisions or procedures regarding conflicts of laws. 

 
2. In the event any provision hereof is held void or unenforceable by any court of competent 

jurisdiction, then such provision shall be deemed severed from this Agreement and shall 
not affect the remaining provisions hereof. 

 
3. This Agreement is the entire agreement among the Parties and when executed by the 

parties hereto, supersedes all prior agreements, understandings and communications, 
either verbal or in writing, among the Parties hereto with respect to the subject matter 
contained herein. 

 
4. Any amendment or variation of this Agreement must be in writing and duly signed by the 

Parties hereto in order to be of any effect. 
 

5. Any failure by a Party to comply with any obligation, agreement or condition herein may 
be expressly waived in writing by the other Party, but such waiver or failure to insist 
upon strict compliance with such obligation, agreement or condition shall not operate as a 
waiver of, or estoppel with respect to, any such subsequent or other failure. 

 
6. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties and 

their respective heirs, successors, and assigns. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District and Provider have executed this Agreement 
____________________, 2025. 
 

District: 
 

   Naples Central School District  
 
By:   _________________________________________ 
  
 
Provider: 
 Juventas Physical, Occupational, and Speech Therapy Services, PLLC 
 

  By: __________________________________________ 
   Carrie E. Richards, Managing Partner 
   Juventas Physical, Occupational, and Speech Therapy Services, PLLC 






































	01 - Regular Meeting of May 7  2025 - AGENDA - Initial
	01 - Regular Meeting of May 7  2025 - BLANK MINUTES - Initial
	Policy #7540 Suicide - After Changes
	Policy #7552 Bullying Peer Abuse in the Schools
	Policy #7570 Supervision of Students - After Changes
	Policy #7580 Safe Public School Choice - DELETE
	Business - Contract Naples 2025-27- ESY Speech and PT
	Business - Discards Elementary Library April 2025
	05 - Regular Meeting of May 7  2025 - AGENDA & MINUTES FINAL.pdf
	05 - Regular Meeting of May 7  2025 - AGENDA - Initial
	05 - Regular Meeting of May 7  2025 - MINUTES FINAL




